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FRANKLIN COUNTY, taken fr . Clinton 11th March, 1808; is bounded
by Lat. 459, and Lower Canada on the ., Clinton and Essex counties, on the E.,
Fssex and Hamilton counties on the 8., and St. Lawrence county, on the W.
Greatest length 60, greatest breadth 30, miles;. area 1,527 square miles; situate
hetween 440 06’ and 45° N. Lat. and 2913 and 3° 01, E. Long.; centrally dis-
tant from New York, 287, from Albauy 142, miles. ok

Upon the S. E. and E. this county has some hilly lands, in Duane and Bel-
mont, and a range of lower hills, runs N. E. over Dickenson, Brandon, Malone,
Constable, and Cheteangua; the other portions are comparatively level. These
hills on the E. of primitive formation, are ecmposed, chiefly, of granitic rocks.
Thé country on the N.and W. is transition, containing sand stone, graywacke,
slate, and lime. The lands of the-transition are generally of medium quality and
some of them highly fertile. Bog iron is found in the N. and mountain cre of
good quality in the S. , : ) '

The county is drained on the S. E. by the S, W. branches of the Saranac river;
on the W. by branches of the Racket, and St, Regis, rivers; on the'N. BE. by
Chateangua tiver, and on the N. W. by ‘Salmon and Trout rivers. There are some
small lakes or ponds scatiered over the surface. ‘

"The Chateaugua Yiver, fows from Chateaugua lake, 1,200 feet above. the level
of the ocean, in Beekmantown, of Clinion county, near the line of this county
and runs N. W. through Franklin, about 15 miles, into Lower Canada, and to the
_S¢. Lawrence river, a {ew miles above Montreal; and receives Trout river some
miles N. of the state line.’ '

Trput river, 1ises by several branches, in the towns of Belmont, Malone, Chate-
augua and Constable; and runs northerly abouat 18 miles, across the staie bound-
ary, affording numerous and excellent mill sites.

‘Sulmon river, issues from some small lakes, in the towns of Belmont and Duane,
near the sonrees of the W. branch of the Saranac, and passes throngh Malone,
Waestville, and Fort Covington, into Lower Canada, and thenee to the St. Law-
rence; having a length of about 50 miles. Near the village of Fort Covingion 1t
receives the Little Salmon and Deer rivers, and thence is boatable to its recipient,
6 miles. In the waters, and particularly, in the lakes, tront are abundant and
frequently large. . _ . )

he forest, very dense, containing trees of immense size, consists of white and
yellow pine, hemlock, oak, beech, birch, bass wood, elm, and white cedar. The
last is very abundant and large.
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The settlements of the county are almost wholly in the northern part extending
about 15 miles S. from the N. line, and even hers are sparse; much the larger
portion of the country being yet covered with the primitive (orests. The soil is
a sandy loam, occasionally mixed with clay, stony, and the fields commonly,
among thrifty farmers. are fenced with the stones gathered from ihe surface.
Some wheat is raised, but it is an uncertain erop, whiist grass, oats, barley, eorn,
and esculent roots, generally, are very productive. No portion of the state per-
haps is better adapted to the sugar beet. Grazing and lumbering, are the chief
pursuits of the ishabitauts, who find their market upon the St. Lawrence river.

Notwithstanding the rigours of the climate, and they certainly are not 10 be
disregarded, scarce any portion of the state, grows more rapidly in populations
and no newly settled portion of it displays more comfort and content. Wild lands
sell at from $23, to $, and improved farms at from $8, to $25, the acre.
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A pretty good road extending from Plattshurg to Ogdensburg, runs through
these settlements,

The county comprises zall the tract known as No. 1, of Macomb’s Purchase, (ex-
cept three townships of Essex county) three townships of the 0ld Military tract,
and the St. Regis Indian reservation.

The county is divided into 12 towns, :
Baxecor, taken from Dickenson ‘15th June, 1812; distant N. W. from Alban
221, and from Malone, W. 8 miles; surface level; soil sandy loam, underlaid
with quartzose rock and blue limestone, both affording excellent material for
huilding, and what is rare in newly settled countries, stone is much used for dwel-
lings. Good crops of wheat are grown here, and grass and oats floarish luxuri-
antly; drained noriherly by Little Salmon river. The population is principally
distributed along two roads, about 3 miles asunder, known as the North and
South streets, and the settlements thereon, respectively, as Bangor and Nortk
Bangor. The first, 5 miles from Malone, contains the post office, a free church, 3
asheries, 2 grist and 2 saw mills, clothing works, 2 stores, 4 taverns, one of them
a temperance house, and about 35 dwellings; many of them very comfortable,
and their number is rapidly inereasing. North village, contains about the same
number of dwellings as Bangor, and of better quality, a free church, and is alike

thriving.

Bewmoxr, taken from Chateauguna 25th Mareh, 1833; N. W. from Albany 185,
and from Malone, S, E. 25, miles; surface on the N. hilly, on the 8. mountain-
ous; soil clay and sandy Toam, sparsely settled, there not being more than one
inhabitant to every 500 acres; drained northward by the Chateangua and Traut
rivers, and westward by branches of the Salmon river. Belmont, post village, 12
miles S. E. from Malone, has a store, tavern, ashery, saw mill, and 10 or 12
dwellings. ' ‘ .

Bowpay, taken from Fort Covington March 30th, 1833; N. W. from Albany
232, from Malone 20, miles; watered by the Little Salmon and the St. Regis and
Racket rivers, flowing westward-to the St. Lawrence; to which the N. W. angle of
of the town and county approaches within 40 rods. The Indian village, St. Regis,
lies on the left bank of the St. Regis river, upon the N. boundary, and the post
village of Hegansbuarg, on the same side of the river, about 3 miles above it. The
reservation for the St. Regis Indians, lies partly in this town and partly in Fort
Covington, extending 11 by 3-miles. Hogansburg, has 1 Catholic and 1 Epis-
copal churches, 1 large flouring mill, 4 saw mills, clothing works, 2 taverns, 3
stores, and about 50 dwellings, generally good. Bombay Four Corners, nas 1
Methodist Episcopal church, 3 taverns, 4 stores,and about 30 dwellings. The present
or late chief of the St. Regis Indians, is or was a descendant, of the danghter of the
Rev. Wm. Williams, minister of Deerfield, who was made captive in the war of
1660. The father lived to return, but the daughter having married an Indian,
adhered to the tribe. Eleazer Williams, a son of the chief, was some years since
employed by the Episcopal church of New York, to instruet the Oneidas.

Branpon, taken from Bangor 28th January, 1828; N. W. from Albany 220,
from Malone 30, miles. A wild, rough, and thinly inhabited district, covered
with almost unexplored forest. Its known- soil is sandy loam; drained 8. E.
by the Saranac tiver, and W. by branches of the Racket and St. Regis rivers.
Saranac lake lies in the 8, E. The settlements are in the N. part of the town,

where 2 dense vicinage called after the town, contains about 30 dwellings, soms
of which are of stone. 'The surrounding country is productive in grass.

CuaTrAvGUA, taken from Plattsburg and Champlain, as part of Clinton county;
N. W. from Albany 200, from Malone 13, miles; surface somewhat hilly, but not
brolien; soil clay and sandy loam, resting on quartzose rock and limestone; drained
by the Chateaugua river, running N. across the town, on which, near the village of
Chateagua Four Corners, are some noted falls with a cascade of 90 feet perpendic-
ular, over granitic rock; and by some branches of T'yout river. The village, cen-
trally situate, contains 1 Presbyterian chureh, a store, tavern, saw mill, grist
mill, ashery, tannery, and 20 dwellings, surrounded by a fertile and improving
country. Settlements were first made in this town about the year 1805. Another
post office is called West Chateaugua.

Constarrr, taken from Harrison, as part of Clinton county, March 13th, 1807;
since modified; N. W. from Albany 227, and from Malone 7, miles; surface level;
. BB
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soil sandy loam; drained northerly and centrally by Trout river, and N. W, by
Salmon river. The village of Constable, on Trout river, 7 miles N. of Malone,
has a post office, a free chuarch, 1 store, 1 tavern, 2 saw mills, and about 35 dwel-
lings, stretching a considerable distance along the principal road. Another post
office in the town is called Kast Constable, around which is also a considerable
settlement.

DickEeNsox, taken from Harrison, (original name of Malone) 11th April, 1808;
N. W. from Albany 220, and from Malone S, L. 30, miles; surface generally
level; soil sandy loam and stony; drained westerly by tributaries of the Racket
and St. Regis rivers. The settlenents are ehiefly in the N. part of the town, ex-
tending 10 miles S. of the boundary. The town is nearly 20 miles long. The
post office lies upon Deer river, a branch of the St. Regis 225 miles from Albany,
and 16 S. W. of Malone, near which are 2 taverns, and a saw mill.

Duanr, taken from Malone 24th Jaouary, 1828; N. W. of Albany 185, 8. of
Malone 20, miles; surface in the S. hilly, being crossed by the Chateaugna moun-
tains, covered with dense forests little explored. In the N. part, the sail is sandy
loam, of good quality, upon which the scanty population is settled; drained on
the S. E. by the Saranac, on the N. E. by the Salmon rivers, and on the W. by
the St. Regis. The post village lies in the N. part of the town about 10 miles S,
of Malone, where are a blast furnace and forge for making iron, from ore in the
vicinage, a scythe factory, 2 saw mills, 1 store and tavern, and some 25 dwellings.
There is in this town an abundauce of hypersthene and octahedral iron ore,
strongly magnetic; and a bed of native steel ore, for the manufacture of which Mr.
Duane, the proprietor has erected extensive works. The product is much esteemed
in the market. This ore is not the spathic iron or proper steel. It resembles the
octahedral ore, but is only slightly attracted by the magnet.

Forr CovINGTON, called after General Covington, who was slain at the battle
of Williamsburg, November 11th, 1813; taken from Constable 28th February,
1817; eomprising townships No. 1, and part of No. 2, in Great Tract, No.1, of
Macomb’s purchase, and part of the St. Regis Indian reservation; N. W. from
Albany 235, and from Malone 15, miles; surface level; soil of sapd and
clay loam of good quality; drained N.by the Salmon and Little Salmon rivers,
and their tributary Deer river, which winds in the N. part.of the town. In the
Fork, 5 miles S. of the St. Lawrence river, lies the post village of Fort Coving-
ton, formerly called French Mills, containing a congregation of Baptists, 1 Pres-
byterian church, an academy, 1 grist, 1 saw, mills, 3 taverns, 8 stores, 1 distillery,
several groceries, and 150 dwellings, A large lumber business is conducted by
the way of the St. Lawrence, The Salmon river is mavigable for boats to that
river. This is the principal depot of the eastern part of St. Lawrence and the
W. part of Franklin counties.

Maroxe, taken from Harrison and organised as part of Clinton county, March
2d, 1805; the name was subsequently changed to Ezraville, and afterwards to
Malone: It has been variously altered; N. W. from Albany 212 miles; surface
level; soil sandy loam; drained by the Salmon river which crosses it N. westerly.
n the S. E. there are upon this stream considerable falls, and in the S, a small
lake which sends forth a tributary to the river. Malone, the shire village, in the
N, part of the county, 51 miles from Plattsburg, and 70 from Ogdensburg, is
finely situated on both banks of the stream, over which is a stone bridge of one
arch, 80 feet wide, 65 feet above the surface of the water. The village contains the
post office, a printing office, issuing a weekly journal, the court house and jail, of
wood, an arsenal, 1 Presbyterian and 1 Baptist, churches, an academy, 1 very
large cotton factory of stone, having 5,000 spindles and 80 looms; 1 grist and 1
saw mille, clothing works, trip hamuwer, pocket furnace, 3 taverns, one of them 2
« temperance house,” 6 stores, and 65 dwellings. There are a pail fastory, a
seythe factory, pocket furnace, and forge, 2 miles from the village. Iron oreis
abundant in the town, said to be similar to the celebrated Pern ore, from which,
at works in the town, between 60 and 70 tons of bar iron are made annually.

Moira, taken from Dickenson 15th April, 1827; N, W. from Albany 225, from
Malone W. 14, miles; surface level; soil sandy loam, on lime and slate; drained
N. by Little Salmon river, comparatively thickly settled. The post village bear-
ing the name of the town, contains a free church, 2 saw and 1 grist, mills, cloth-
ing works, 1 store, 1 tavern, and about 25 dwellings.
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WaesTviLLe, taken from Constable April 25th, 1829; N. W. from Albany 2923,
and from Malone 9, miles; surface level; soil sandy loam; drained by the Salmon
river, which flows N. westerly across it. Upen its banks in the N. W. angle,

lies the post village of Westoille, containing 1 saw mill, 1 tavern, 1 store, about
20 dwellings, and a forge for making iron.



